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By email: netzeroteessideproject@planninginspectorate.gov.uk 

Dear Ms Evans 

APPLICATION REF: EN010103 - THE NET ZERO TEESSIDE PROJECT 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE NET ZERO TEESSIDE DEVELOPMENT CONSENT ORDER 
(‘THE NET ZERO TEESSIDE ORDER’) APPLICATION 

LAND AT AND IN THE VICINITY OF THE FORMER REDCAR STEEL WORKS SITE (TEESWORKS SITE), 
REDCAR AND IN STOCKTON-ON-TEES 

I write on behalf of the Applicants, Net Zero Teesside Power Limited and Net Zero North Sea Storage 
Limited, in relation to the Net Zero Teesside (NZT) Development Consent Order (DCO) Application, 
which was accepted for examination on 16 August 2021. 

I wrote to the Planning Inspectorate on 18 February 2022 explaining the Applicants’ intention to 
propose a number of changes to the DCO Application.  That letter was accompanied by a ‘Notification 
Report’ (Document Ref. 7.1) [AS-044], which identified the nature of the changes proposed and 
advised of the Applicants’ intention to request that the changes described in the Notification Report 
be accepted as changes to the DCO Application.  The letter requested the advice of the Examining 
Authority (ExA) on the procedural implications of the proposed changes and on the need, scope and 
nature of the proposed non-statutory consultation exercise to be undertaken by the Applicants in 
respect of those changes. 

The ExA responded on 24 February 2022 [PD-008] drawing the Applicants’ attention to the 
requirements of the Planning Inspectorate’s (PINS) Advice Note 16 ‘How to request a change which 
may be material’ and providing guidance on the Applicants’ intended approach to the submission of 
the proposed changes and the proposed consultation.  The Applicants have observed the 
requirements of Advice Note 16 and have followed that advice closely.   

This letter, and the documents that accompanying it, represent the Applicants’ formal change request 
in respect of the DCO Application. 

Change Request 

The Net Zero Teesside Project (the ‘Project’) is a technically challenging, and complex ‘first-of-a-kind’ 
development.  It is a critical part of a Track 1 carbon capture and storage cluster project, which the UK 
Government has identified as being important for the decarbonisation of the power and industrial 
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sectors both on Teesside and nationally.  The Project is effectively two projects in one – an industrial 
decarbonisation project combined with a low-carbon dispatchable power station, located in an area 
where there are a large number of industrial and other developments (both existing and proposed).  

Due to the Project’s nature and scale, the extent of land interests within the proposed Order Limits 
and the potential to re-use existing infrastructure to reduce its construction effects, the DCO 
Application submitted in July 2021 necessarily included a degree of optionality.  The Applicants have 
previously explained to PINS the need to retain a degree of optionality within the Application, but have 
also been clear that their aim would be to reduce that optionality, if possible, in advance of the 
Examination as the project design is progressed.  The options included in the DCO Application were 
consulted upon and assessed as part of the environmental impact assessment (EIA) for the Project. 

Since submission of the DCO Application, the Applicants have continued to engage with Interested 
Parties with a view to addressing matters raised in their Relevant Representations and agreeing 
common ground, while also continuing with detailed project development.  This work has identified a 
number of changes that the Applicants are now seeking to make to the Project.  The changes are aimed 
at reducing optionality, land take and complexity.  Their overall effect would therefore be beneficial, 
reducing the potential effects of the Project on Interested Parties and other affected persons and the 
number of issues to be considered in the Examination, thereby simplifying both the Examination and 
decision-making processes.  

There are three main areas of change to the Project being proposed as part of this formal change 
request as compared to the Project that was presented in the DCO Application submitted in July 2021.  
These are that: 

1. the Gas Connection route for Work No. 2A has been selected; 

2. the CO2 Gathering Network route from the north of the River Tees and across the Tees forming 
part of Work no. 6 to the Power Capture and Compression (PCC) Site has been reduced in land 
area; and 

3. updates have been made to land parcels across the Project/Order Limits due to further pre-
front end engineering design (FEED) construction assessments and landowner discussions. 

The above have resulted in 13 changes to the Project, which are summarised below.  A more detailed 
description of the proposed changes is provided at Chapter 2 of the Environmental Statement (ES) 
Addendum – Volume I (Main Document) (Document Ref. 7.8.1), which forms part of the change 
request.        

A summary of the proposed changes is provided in Table 1 below in terms of changes to the individual 
Work Number (Nos.) listed at Schedule 1 ‘Authorised Development’ of the draft DCO (Document Ref. 
2.1) and shown upon the Works Plans (Document Ref. 4.4).  The changes remain the same as those 
set out in the Notification Report, other than the Applicants have identified the opportunity to remove 
small additional extents of certain Work Nos. within the Teesworks site alongside Change 13.  

 

 

 

 







 

 

5 

remain a full chain Carbon Capture, Usage and Storage project, comprising a number of elements, 
including a new gas-fired electricity generating station (with an electrical output of up to 860 
megawatts) with post-combustion carbon capture plant; gas, electricity and water connections (for 
the electricity generating station); a CO2 pipeline network for collecting CO2  from a cluster of local 
industries on Teesside; a high-pressure CO2  compressor station; and an onshore CO2 export pipeline.  
In its response dated 24 February 2022 to the notification of the proposed changes , the ExA accepted 
“… that the proposed changes, either individually or cumulatively, would not lead to the Project being 
different in nature or substances to what which was originally applied for in July 2021.” 

The Applicants therefore formally request that each proposed change is accepted for Examination.  
Each change is fully described, justified and assessed in the documentation submitted with this letter. 
The documentation does not presume the acceptance of any proposed change; each change is 
identified separately and subject to separate assessment, so that the likely effects and merits of each 
change can be clearly understood.  

We recognise that it is for the ExA to determine the materiality of the proposed changes, but the 
changes have been publicised, justified and assessed as if they were material.  

Environmental Information 

The proposed changes have been subject to environmental and other relevant assessment, the full 
details of which are contained within the Environmental Statement (ES) Addendum (Documents Refs. 
7.7 to 7.8), which forms part of the change request. 
 
The ES Addendum should be read in conjunction with the original ES (Document Refs 6.1 to 6.4) [APP-
081 to 347].  It considers how the proposed changes affect the assessments presented as part of the 
original ES. 
 
Chapter 2 of the ES Addendum – Volume I (Main Report) (Document Ref. 7.8.1) provides a detailed 
description of each of the 13 proposed changes.  Chapter 3 describes the changes to the introductory 
chapters of the original ES resulting from the proposed changes.  Chapter 3 also includes Table 6-2, 
which provides a summary of the change in environmental effects as a result of the proposed changes. 
 
Chapter 4 of the ES Addendum – Volume I (Main Report) identifies where the proposed changes have 
the potential to modify the assessments of impacts and effects reported in the technical chapters of 
the original ES.  Noise and Vibration, Ornithology and Major Accidents and Disasters (MAD) are 
considered in detail as a screening exercise identified the potential for these assessments to be altered 
as a result of the proposed changes.  The further assessment work (presented within Volume II of the 
ES Addendum) has not identified any change in or new significant effects for these topics.   
     
The assessment of the potential change in effects for other topics is set out in Table 4-1 of Chapter 4.  
Chapter 4 concludes that the proposed changes will not affect the significance of effects predicted for 
Air Quality; Surface Water; Flood Risk and Water Resources; Geology and Contaminated Land; 
Terrestrial Ecology; Aquatic Ecology; Marine Ecology; Traffic; Landscape and Visual Amenity; Marine 
Heritage; Socio-Economic; Climate Change; Public Heath; Cumulative and Combined Effects and the 
Summary of Significant Effects chapters. 
 
The ES Addendum constitutes ‘environmental information’ for the purposes of ‘The Infrastructure 
Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017’ (the ‘EIA Regulations’).  There is no 
specific procedure provided for within the EIA Regulations where updated environmental information 






